Thurrock - An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage and excited by its diverse opportunities and future

Lower Thames Crossing Task Force

The meeting will be held at 6.00 pm on 17 September 2018

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex, RM17 6SL

Membership:

Councillors Qaisar Abbas, John Allen, Andrew Jefferies, Tom Kelly, Terry Piccolo, Jane Pothecary, Gerard Rice, Sue Sammons and Peter Smith

Matt Jackson, Thames Crossing Action Group Representative Westley Mercer, Thurrock Business Board Representative Linda Mulley, Resident Representative Peter Ward, Business Representative

Substitutes:

Councillors Russell Cherry, Mike Fletcher and Sue Shinnick

Agenda

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minutes

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Lower Thames Crossing Task Force meeting held on 23 April 2018.

3 Items of Urgent Business

To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B (4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declaration of Interests

5 - 12

Page

- 5 Election of the Chair
- 6 Verbal Updates: Consultation
- 7 Verbal Updates: Statement of Community Consultation
- 8 Verbal Updates: Health Impact Assessment
- 9 Verbal Updates: Planning Performance Agreement
- **10** Verbal Updates: Correspondence
- 11 Update on Mitigation Schedule
- 12 Work Programme

13 - 16

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:

Please contact Lucy Tricker, Democratic Services Officer by sending an email to direct.democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Agenda published on: **12 September 2018**

Information for members of the public and councillors

Access to Information and Meetings

Members of the public can attend all meetings of the council and its committees and have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working days before the meeting, and minutes once they are published.

Recording of meetings

This meeting may be recorded for transmission and publication on the Council's website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to be recorded.

Members of the public not wishing any speech or address to be recorded for publication to the Internet should contact Democratic Services to discuss any concerns.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at <u>Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk</u>

Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee meetings

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local communities.

If you wish to film or photograph the proceedings of a meeting and have any special requirements or are intending to bring in large equipment please contact the Communications Team at <u>CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk</u> before the meeting. The Chair of the meeting will then be consulted and their agreement sought to any specific request made.

Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar devices to use social media, make recordings or take photographs these devices must be set to 'silent' mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or committee.

The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has been discussed prior to the meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not disrupt proceedings.

The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording and use of social media if any of these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting proceedings at the meeting.

Thurrock Council Wi-Fi

Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet.

- You should connect to TBC-CIVIC
- Enter the password **Thurrock** to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network.
- A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept.

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only.

Evacuation Procedures

In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk.

How to view this agenda on a tablet device



You can view the agenda on your <u>iPad</u>, <u>Android Device</u> or <u>Blackberry</u> <u>Playbook</u> with the free modern.gov app.

Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged, although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services.

To view any "exempt" information that may be included on the agenda for this meeting, Councillors should:

- Access the modern.gov app
- Enter your username and password

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence

Helpful Reminders for Members

- Is your register of interests up to date?
- In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests?
- Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly?

When should you declare an interest at a meeting?

- What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet, Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or
- If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is before you for single member decision?

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting

- relate to; or
- likely to affect

any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests?

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of:

- your spouse or civil partner's
- a person you are living with as husband/ wife
- a person you are living with as if you were civil partners

where you are aware that this other person has the interest.

A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of the Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests.

What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? – this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest.



If the interest is not already in the register you must (unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature of the interest to the meeting Non- pecuniary

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a pending notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:

of the interest for inclusion in the register

Not participate or participate further in any discussion of the matter at a meeting;

- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the meeting; and
- leave the room while the item is being considered/voted upon

If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further steps Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature

You may participate and vote in the usual way but you should seek advice on Predetermination and Bias from the Monitoring Officer.

Our Vision and Priorities for Thurrock

An ambitious and collaborative community which is proud of its heritage and excited by its diverse opportunities and future.

- 1. **People** a borough where people of all ages are proud to work and play, live and stay
 - High quality, consistent and accessible public services which are right first time
 - Build on our partnerships with statutory, community, voluntary and faith groups to work together to improve health and wellbeing
 - Communities are empowered to make choices and be safer and stronger together
- 2. **Place** a heritage-rich borough which is ambitious for its future
 - Roads, houses and public spaces that connect people and places
 - Clean environments that everyone has reason to take pride in
 - Fewer public buildings with better services
- 3. **Prosperity** a borough which enables everyone to achieve their aspirations
 - Attractive opportunities for businesses and investors to enhance the local economy
 - Vocational and academic education, skills and job opportunities for all
 - Commercial, entrepreneurial and connected public services

Minutes of the Meeting of the Lower Thames Crossing Task Force held on 23 April 2018 at 6.00 pm

Present:	Councillors Peter Smith (Chair), Gerard Rice (Vice-Chair), John Allen, Roy Jones, Tom Kelly, Steve Liddiard and Bukky Okunade
	Matt Jackson, Thames Crossing Action Group Representative Westley Mercer, Thurrock Business Board Linda Mulley, Resident Representative
Apologies:	Councillor Brian Little and Peter Ward
In attendance:	Lyn Carpenter, Chief Executive Steve Cox, Corporate Director Place Ian Wake, Director of Public Health John Lamb, Interim Assistant Director - Lower Thames Crossing Helen Horrocks, Strategic Lead Commissioner for Public Health Navtej Tung, Principal Transport Planner Jenny Shade, Senior Democratic Services Officer Tim Jones, Highways England Ian Kennard, Highways England Paul Manklelow, Highways England Alison Powell, Highways England Caroline Soubry-Smith, Highways England Tom Wright, Highways England Gary Hodge, Highways England

Before the start of the Meeting, all present were advised that the meeting may be filmed and was being recorded, with the audio recording to be made available on the Council's website.

The Chair reminded Members that as we were within the pre-election period, also known as Purdah, the meeting was an opportunity for Members to seek information and not to be used as a political platform.

62. Minutes

The minutes of the Lower Thames Crossing Task Force meeting held on the 19 March 2018 were approved as a correct record.

63. Items of Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

64. Declaration of Interests

Councillor Jones declared that, as residents of Thurrock, every Member of the Task Force had an interest in the future of the proposed scheme.

65. Update on Liaison with Highways England

The Corporate Director of Place presented the item which provided the Task Force of an update regarding a meeting that had taken place between Council Officers and Highways England since the last meeting of the Task Force.

Councillor Okunade requested that points raised at the 22 January 2018 be forwarded to Task Force Members.

Councillor Kelly raised concerns of the proposed plans in relation to the issues in Dartford following the consultation pitched by Highways England on the 22 March 2015. Where it was stated that it would be Highways England's obligation to sort out Dartford issues as part of this project and that pressure should be continued to be applied.

The Chair stated that the plans were flawed and lacked vision and highlighted that offering no rail links was an oversight by Highways England.

Councillor Rice requested a business case detailing route comparisons that would demonstrate best value for money. Tim Jones stated that this would be necessary as part of the Business Case which was currently being developed.

Tim Jones agreed to make sure the whole business case brought in Dartford for when the scheme operates from 2027 and offered to hold a summit to look at how the two crossings worked. This would be undertaken through the summer period with the final Business Case including public consultation feedback.

Councillor Jones questioned Highways England on the complexity of constructions on the Kent (south side). Tim Jones stated that there would be complex constructions and some major civil engineering issues on the south side which Thurrock would not have. That it would be hard to differentiate the two sides and that both would be treated the same. Councillor Jones stated there was still a lot of uncertainty by Thurrock residents.

Councillor Jones requested an update on the plans for the railway section. Tim Jones stated that this would be a matter for the technical group and were on the action list. The action list was worked on week by week and that items had been accelerated.

Councillor Jones requested an update on the downgrading of the A1089. Tim Jones stated that it would be highly unlikely that the A1089 would be downgraded.

Councillor Allen stated he strongly continued to be opposed to the Lower Thames Crossing coming through the borough. The Chair repeated concern following the surprise announcement by Highways England at the previous Task Force that Heath Road would be closed. He requested that Heath Road should not be closed as shown in the virtual impact video by Highways England.

Tim Jones stated that Highways England had now re-considered and could re-assure the group that Heath Road and Baker Street would now not be closed as part of the plans. Councillor Rice accepted this decision and stated that Highways England was heading in the right direction on decision making.

The Resident Representative stated that it was very difficult for members of the Task Force not get too personal when speaking on behalf of public residents as Highways England were proposing something at the heart of their community.

The Thames Crossing Action Group Representative stated that Highways England should be more open and present their information more accurately. Tim Jones stated that it was unusual for Highways England to release information until after the public consultation and confirmed that no further information would be released until this consultation had been published.

Councillor Kelly requested that the junction between the A1089 and the A13 be scrutinised as a separate item. The Chair agreed to add this to the work programme as this would be seen as vital for Thurrock road networks.

Councillor Allen asked Highways England how they can assure the best interests of residents when Highways England was unable to tackle the litter problem on the A1089 and A13. Tim Jones stated that lots of litter initiatives had been put in place and agreed that more needed to be done in cooperation with Thurrock Council and the Police. Councillor Allen stated that the current contract with Connect25 should be addressed. Tim Jones stated that Connect25 were under pressure from Thurrock Council and Highways England and agreed to respond directly to Councillor Allen.

Councillor Rice stated that the untidiness between Chadwell St Mary and Woodside needed to be addressed.

Councillor Jones queried as to whether an updated version of the virtual impact video would be provided by Highways England that would show the location of houses.

The Chair stated that the Task Force would be seeking to thoroughly review a future version of the fly through. Tim Jones stated that no further information would be provided until following the statutory consultation.

66. Highways England Action List

The Chair stated that Highways England had received the list of Member Priorities that were presented to the January Task Force with a considerable amount of those priorities reflecting ongoing work with some of them being captured in the Highways England Action List. That Highways England were reviewing the responses to the list of Task Force Priority and that Thurrock Officers would work with Highways England to ensure that concerns are reflected and addressed over coming weeks. Future Task Force meetings would receive updates, produced by Highways England on each of the key priorities.

67. Health Impacts

The Director of Public Health presented to Members the understanding of the potential health impact of the proposed Lower Thames Crossing.

The Chair thanked the Director of Public Health for the very detailed presentation.

The Resident Representative stated that it was vital that Highways England undertook sound proofing measures as it was evident that the exposure of continuous background noise would affect residents. The Resident Representative requested reassurances that this would start immediately.

Councillor Jones thanked the Director of Public Health for a good presentation and questioned Highways England how the noise and pollution could be omitted. Tim Jones stated that Highways England would look at the road structure first before these could be addressed.

The Director of Public Health stated that following an evaluation it was vital that for urban breathing, structures should be built as much as possible underground.

Councillor Rice stated that following advice from medical advisors it was evident that sound proofing would have some remedial affects to residents and questioned why a Health Impact Assessment was not being carried out. Councillor Rice also questioned why Highways England was not listening to the public and the health experts. Tim Jones stated that presentations would be made following discussions with the working group and the design team.

Councillor Allen stated that the borough's infrastructure should be addressed first especially the east facing slip roads on the A13 at Lakeside.

Councillor Kelly requested that more research was undertaken on the comparison of the potential huge influx of heavy goods vehicles over the next 10 years and what affect this would have on the expansion of roads in the borough. The Director of Public Health agreed that some detailed research was vital.

Tim Jones stated that there was a need to meet more frequently than every week to consider the detail of the scheme and help Highways England with the design. The Interim Assistant Director – Lower Thames Crossing stated that the offer of further technical meetings was noted however Thurrock Council was already investing a considerable amount of Officer time into understanding the project consistent with what the Task Force had requested.

The Interim Assistant Director – Lower Thames Crossing also stated that it fell to Highways England to design and develop their proposal. As Applicant it fell to Highways England to respond to local concerns during design and development and Officers will but it would not be for Thurrock Council Officers to co-design the scheme – for instance Members had requested that the majority of the scheme be in tunnel or cut and cover and this would form the basis of technical discussion but how Highways England actually responded was down to them as Applicant. The Corporate Director of Place and the Interim Assistant Director – Lower Thames Crossing will continue to attend the technical meetings alongside Highways England in that context.

68. Highways England Update - Health Impacts

Highways England presented their Health Impacts presentation to Members of the Task Force.

The Chair thanked Highways England for the presentation.

Councillor Rice stated that the presentation was very comprehensive but had not addressed why a Health Impact Assessment would not be carried out. Highways England stated that a Social Impact Assessment would be undertaken in a broader sense.

Councillor Rice stated that Highways England must pay attention to the four Public Health Directors and professionals and proceed with the Health Impact Assessment.

The Chair stated that a letter had recently been sent to Highways England and would give them the opportunity to respond. Tim Jones reported that he had not received that letter.

The Thames Crossing Action Group Representative stated that pollution would affect all residents especially with the forecast of an extra 250,000 vehicles travelling through the borough. Highways England stated that an air quality assessment had been undertaken that had explored the wider factors and impacts on the health of residents.

The Resident Representative stated that the Social Impact Assessment had no relevance and that the key factors raised by Thurrock Council and residents appeared to have been watered down by Highways England and had not offered a true impact. The Director of Public Health reiterated that a Health Impact Assessment was vital and should be undertaken without fail.

The Chair stated that all Members agreed.

Councillor Jones questioned how air quality, pollution and noise could be alleviated when there would be substantial elevated sections in the scheme.

Councillor Okunade questioned how confident Highways England was where air quality mitigation proposals would reduce the risk to life.

Councillor Allen stated that Highways England should listen to the professional's judgement and undertake a Health Impact Assessment.

Tim Jones stated that in his view his team needed to be congratulated on the hard work involved on their presentations which were of such complex technical nature. He felt the scope of the project was very comprehensive and once the letter had been received by Highways England it would be analysed and would take the Director of Public Health's point and the test the Health and Social Impacts so that no confusion could be made between the two. Tim Jones would report back and clarify to Task Force Members.

The Chair questioned whether both a Social Impact Assessment and a Health Impact Assessment could be undertaken. Tim Jones stated that once Highways England had the opportunity to analyse the letter they would come back and comment.

Councillor Kelly questioned whether the equality report on deprived areas had identified a bigger risk to the population of those areas. Highways England stated that studies would be undertaken on vulnerable groups and baseline where and how these groups may be affected but he saw no reasons that a full Health Impact Assessment would provide any greater understanding than currently proposed. The Director of Public Health stated that he could not disagree more that it was evident that deprived areas would be affected more. Highways England stated that links with air quality schemes would also be undertaken.

69. Lower Thames Crossing Task Force Priorities

The Interim Assistant Director – Lower Thames Crossing stated that the Members would be familiar with the Priorities list. This had not changed and still featured the primary areas of concern as first stated three months ago. He advised Members that this should be used as a useful checklist to reflect on the items with Highways England providing feedback and updates in the future.

The Chair reiterated to Members that this item was most important and that responses to it by Highways England would be expected each month.

Councillor Rice requested Highways England dealt with house valuations in the borough to protect residents should the scheme go ahead.

The Thames Crossing Group Representative requested a deep dive session on Baker Street be added to the work programme.

Councillor Jones requested as part of the consultation an item be added on whether there would be any restriction on unescorted tankers. Tim Jones restated that as previously advised the new crossing would be 'Category A' and would indeed provide free flow. Tim Jones stated that freight vehicles would be encouraged to use the Lower Thames Crossing especially those travelling north. The Thames Crossing Action Group Representative stated that this would not be the most effective way for the deliveries made by oil tankers into the borough.

Councillor Kelly requested that answers from Highways England should be provided in writing.

The Corporate Director of Place stated that issues raised would generally form part of the statutory consultation and suggested that the next Task Force meeting focused on developing the Priorities List to ensure that it was understood what Thurrock needed and that the Priorities List could form part of the consultation process.

The Thurrock Business Board Member asked Highways England what calculations had been undertaken to establish the potential number of deaths in the construction and operation of the Lower Thames Crossing. Tim Jones stated that there was no excuse for any incidents of a serious nature on building schemes and this was taken very seriously with zero deaths reported on the 2012 London Olympic sites. Tim Jones stated that members of the Task Force had not mentioned the safety of road workers which Highways England also took very seriously.

70. Work Programme

Councillor Liddiard requested an item on the A13 East Slip Roads at Lakeside be added to the work programme.

Councillor Kelly requested an item on the junction between the A1089 and the A13 be scrutinised and added to the work programme.

The Thames Crossing Group Representative requested an item on a deep dive session on Baker Street be added to the work programme.

The meeting finished at 7.50 pm

Approved as a true and correct record

CHAIR

DATE

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact Democratic Services at <u>Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk</u>

Lower Thames Crossing Task Force Work Programme 2018/2019

Dates of Meetings: 18th June 2018, 16th July 2018, 20th August 2018, 17th September 2018, 15th October 2018, 12th November 2018, 10th December 2018, 14th January 2019, 11th February 2019, 11th March 2019, 29th April 2019

Торіс	Lead Officer	Requested by Officer/Member
	18 June 2018	
Cabinet Update	Steve Cox	Members
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers
	16 July 2018	
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers
	20 August 2018	
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers
	17 September 2018	
Cabinet Update	Steve Cox	Members

Agenda Item 12

Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers

15 October 2018			
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers	
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers	
	12 November 2018		
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers	
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers	
	10 December 2018		
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers	
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers	
	14 January 2019		
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers	
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers	

11 February 2019		
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers

Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers
	11 March 2019	
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers
	29 April 2019	
Highways England Update	Highways England Update	Officers
Work Programme	Democratic Services	Officers

This page is intentionally left blank